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1. Lawyer represents a plaintiff in a case against a corporate defendant.  The 

 attorney for the corporate defendant claims that Lawyer may not contact current 

 employees of the corporate defendant to discuss the case without his prior 

 consent.  Attorney for the corporate defendant is: 

 
 (a)  Incorrect and Lawyer may contact current employees who do not 

 supervise, direct or regularly consult with the organization’s lawyer 

 concerning the litigation, have authority to obligate the organization with 

 respect to the matter and whose acts or omissions in connection with

 the matter may not be imputed to the organization for purposes of civil or  

 criminal liability.  

 
 (b) Incorrect as long as the lawyer for the current employees is contacted and 

 consents to Lawyers contact. 

 
 (c) Incorrect as long as Lawyer subsequently notifies attorney for corporation  

 of the contact with the current employees. 

 
 (d) Correct because the attorney for the corporation must be informed and  

 consent to all proposed contacts with all current employees.  

 
Answer: (a) 
 
 



 

2. Plaintiff, a Florida corporation, sues Defendant, a National Banking Association, 

with its principal place of business outside of Florida seeking damages of $1 

Million.  Defendant is served on December 1 and filed its Notice of Removal with 

the Federal Court on December 20.  Defendant must: 

 

 (a) Answer or present other defenses or objections within 30 days of 

 December 1. 

 
 (b) Answer or present other defenses or objections within 30 days of 

 December 20. 

 
 (c)  Answer or present other defenses or objections within 5 days of 

 December 20. 

 
 (d) Answer or present other defenses or objections within 7 days of 

 December 20. 

 
Answer: (d) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



3. Peter Fenno, the first floor tenant under a commercial lease brought an action 

against Donna Solomon, the occupant of the second floor of the building to recover 

for damage to Peter’s property by fire allegedly caused by negligent use of an 

acetylene torch by Donna’s employees.  At trial, instead of offering into evidence 

voluminous business records showing the amount of damages suffered, Peter 

introduced into evidence a summary showing tabulations of damaged goods for 

the purpose of establishing damages.  Donna objected, arguing it was error to 

allow such a summary instead of requiring the introduction of the business records 

from which such summary/tabulations were prepared since Peter did not notify 

Donna that he would be using a summary. The trial judge should: 

 
(a) Sustain the objection because under the “Best Evidence Rule,” the original 

 documents showing the damages sustained by Peter must be introduced 

 into evidence. 

 
(b) Sustain the objection because Peter did not give timely written notice of  

  his intention to use the summary and file proof of the notice with the court. 

 
(c) Overrule the objection because when it is not convenient to examine in 

 court the contents of voluminous writings, recordings, or photographs, a 

 party may present them in the form of a chart, summary or calculation. 

 
(d) Sustain the objection because without the raw data on which the   

  tabulations are based the tabulations are inadmissible hearsay.  

 
Answer:  (b) 
 

 

 

 



4. Orange County Builders, Inc. (“OCB”) defaulted on a loan from National Bank, and 

workout negotiations failed.  Mike Freed, the sole stockholder of OCB, individually 

sued National Bank on various causes of action, including breach of fiduciary duty, 

fraud and negligent misrepresentation in conjunction with the failed workout 

negotiations.  National Bank defended on the grounds that the original loan 

agreement between OCB and National Bank expressly precluded the claims being 

asserted by Mr. Freed and that any representations were made to Mr. Freed in his 

representative capacity as an officer of OCB.  Mr. Freed asserted that the 

agreement was only binding on OCB and not on him individually as OCB’s 

representative.   

At trial, National Bank attempts to impeach Mr. Freed with letters that he had 

written in an effort to show that Mr. Freed represented himself to National Bank as 

the representative of OCB; described himself in the letters as “me, the borrower,” 

and indicated a willingness to “turn over the keys” to OCB if a workout negotiation 

agreement was not reached.  Mr. Freed’s attorney, Gregg Weiss, has objected to 

introduction of the letters on the grounds that they were settlement 

communications and contain hearsay statements.  The trial court should:  

 

(a) Sustain the objection as inadmissible hearsay. 

 

(b) Sustain the objection as statements made as part of settlement 

 negotiations. 

(c) Overrule the objection because the letters are not offered on the issues of 

 liability or the absence of liability or the value of the claim, but rather to 

 prove Mr. Freed was acting in his capacity on behalf of OCB. 

(d) Overrule the objection because it is a claim involving fraud or 

 negligent misrepresentation. 

Answer:  (c) 



 
 
5. The Huey-Long-Bowden Corporation (“HLB”) sued XYZ, LLC for tortious 

interference with a business relationship to recover damages allegedly suffered as 

a result of XYZ’s filing a lawsuit that disrupted HLB’s efforts to purchase 27 acres 

of unimproved land in Bumbleweed, Florida.  During the course of litigation filed by 

HLB, HLB’s president (John DeFame) testified at his deposition that XYZ is a 

deadbeat and never pays its bills and owes ABC $75,000.  In the HLB v. XYZ 

litigation, XYZ moved for judgment on the pleadings based on the litigation 

privilege challenge to a tortuous interference with a business relationship claim.  

The trial judge should: 

 
  (a) Deny the motion because the immunity afforded by the litigation privilege  

   does not apply to intentional torts. 

 
  (b) Deny the motion because there are genuine issues of material fact as to the 

  nature of the allegedly defamatory statements and the actions of XYZ that  

  allegedly constituted the interference. 

 
(c)  Grant the motion because absolute immunity must be afforded to any act 

occurring during the course of a judicial proceeding, regardless of whether 

the act involves a defamatory statement, so long as the alleged misconduct 

has some relation to the proceeding. 

 
(d)  Grant the motion because HLB really is a deadbeat who never pays its bills. 
 

 
Answer: (c) 
 



6. Which of the following factors is not to be considered by the Court in determining 

whether the use of a copyrighted work is a "fair use" under federal law? 

 
 (a) The nature of the copyrighted work. 
 
 (b) Whether the copyrighted work is the creation of a public figure. 
 

(c) The amount and substantiality of the portion used in relation to the 

copyrighted work as a whole. 

 
(d) The effect of the use upon the potential market for or the value of the 

copyrighted work. 

 

Answer:  (b) 
 
 
 
 
 
7. A person admitted as a partner to an existing general partnership: 
 

(a) Is personally liable for partnership obligations regardless whether they were 

incurred before the person's admission. 

 
(b) Is personally liable for that percentage of partnership obligations incurred 

before the person's admission which equates with her percentage capital 

contribution to the partnership.  

 

(c) Is not personally liable for any partnership obligations incurred before the 

person's admission. 

 
(d) Is not personally liable for any partnership obligations incurred before the 

person's admission unless it can be shown that she was aware of the 

obligations at the time that they were incurred. 

 
Answer: (c) 
 



 

8. Bill Lauper is a minority shareholder in Steinfeld Hotels Corporation (''the 

Corporation'').  Darren is the president, sole director, chief executive and majority 

shareholder of the Corporation.  The Corporation is the sole general partner of 

Fancy Hotels, Ltd., a Florida limited partnership.  Bill owns 25% of the shares of 

the Corporation.  Darren owns 70%, and a third shareholder owns 5%.  The three 

shareholders executed a shareholder agreement.  All three shareholders work full 

time for the Corporation.   Bill sues Darren claiming that Darren violated the 

shareholder agreement and breached his fiduciary duty to the Corporation. Darren 

files a motion to dismiss the case. How should the Court rule? 

  
 (a)   Dismiss the case because the existence or performance of a shareholder 

 agreement cannot be a ground for imposing personal liability on any 

 shareholder for the acts of the corporation. 

 
 (b)  Deny the motion to dismiss because a shareholder may sue another 

 shareholder for breach of the shareholder's agreement. 

 
(c) Dismiss the case because as the majority shareholder, Darren could take 

any acts on behalf of the Corporation that he deemed reasonably prudent. 

 
(d)    Deny the motion to dismiss because of the economic loss rule. 

  
Answer: (b) 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



9. On April 5, 2015, Hank Jackson rented equipment under a four-year lease.  On 

January 8, 2016, he was petitioned involuntarily into bankruptcy under Chapter 11 

of the  Bankruptcy Code.  Jeremy Slusher is appointed as trustee.  The fair market 

value for the  equipment slightly exceeds the balance of the lease payments due.  

The trustee: 

(a) May not reject the equipment lease because the fair market value of the 

equipment exceeds the balance of the lease payments due. 

(b) Must assume the equipment lease because its term exceeds one year. 
 

(c) May elect not to assume the equipment lease. 
 

(d) Must assume and subsequently assign the equipment. 
 

Answer: (c) 
 
10. Discount Finance Corporation purchased retail installment contracts from Sharp 

Deals, a Florida motor vehicle dealer. The retail paper purchased from Sharp 

Deals grants a purchase money security interest in the motor vehicles to the 

dealer. All of the retail installment contracts with the consumer-purchasers provide 

that they will be assigned to Discount, as the assignee. The motor vehicle 

certificates of title are noted with the lien in favor of Discount.  The retail installment 

contracts further provide that the consumer- purchaser of the vehicle waives and 

agrees not to assert any defense or counterclaim as against the assignee. 

 
 With respect to any dispute arising between Discount, as assignee of the retail 

installment contracts, and a consumer-purchaser of a motor vehicle from Sharp 

Deals, which of the following statements are true? 

 

(a) Under certain circumstances, the purchaser may assert any defenses 

against the assignee that the purchaser may have had against Sharp Deals, 

despite the inclusion of the waiver of defense clause in the retail installment 

contract. 

 



(b) Under no circumstances may the purchaser assert any defense against the 

assignee that the purchaser may have had against Sharp Deals, because 

of the waiver of defense clause included in the retail installment contract. 

 
(c) Under no circumstances may the purchaser assert any defenses against 

the assignee that the purchaser may have had against Sharp Deals, 

provided the assignee and Sharp Deals are “closely connected.” 

 
(d) None of the above. 

 

Answer; (a) 
 
 

SAMPLE BUSINESS LITIGATION SKILLS ESSAY 
 

 
Bill Blue and Gail Green each own a 50% percent interest in Walls-R-Us, LLC, that 

manufactures and sells wallpaper.  Both are Florida residents, in Blohard County.   Bill 

Blue provided the financing; Gail Green ran the company and marketed its product. A 

buy-sell agreement contained in the LLC operating agreement enabled either party to buy 

out the other at any time by offering to purchase the other's interest in the company at a 

set price. After receiving an offer, the offeree would have thirty days in which to accept 

the offer or elect to purchase the offeror's interest at the same set price. The agreement 

also had an enforceable one-year non-solicitation and non-competition clause.  

Specifically, this provision gave Bill Blue and Gail Green wide latitude to engage in 

business activities except those similar to the business of Walls-R-Us, LLC, that is, a 

"competing" wallpaper company. 

 

Gail Green offered to purchase Bill Blue's interest for $7 million. Bill Blue demanded to 

know whether Gail Green would be borrowing the funds from a third party, one Rob Red, 

whom Bill Blue knew had earlier approached Walls-R-Us, LLC, and expressed an interest 

in purchasing the company. Rob Red lives in New Mexico, but owns a condominium in 

Ft. Meyers which he visits occasionally. Bill Blue has held a longstanding belief that Rob 

Red is an unscrupulous businessman, and has personal animosity towards him for events 



long ago when they coincidentally attended the same university. Also coincidentally, 

these events involved Gail Green’s sorority sister, to whom Rob Red had been married 

for a short time after college. Gail Green believes that Bill Blue harbors lingering 

jealousies towards Rob Red, and does not want him involved in anything to do with Bill 

Blue’s business affairs.   

 

In fact, however, Gail Green and Rob Red had entered into an asset purchase agreement 

to acquire Walls-R-Us, LLC from Bill Blue that included confidentiality and no discussions 

with others provisions specifically designed to prevent Gail Green from disclosing her true 

intentions to Bill Blue.  Gail Green told Bill Blue that Rob Red was not providing the 

funding for the purchase, nor was anyone else providing the money. Bill Blue also 

confronted Rob Red who represented he had no involvement in Gail Green’s offer to 

purchase Bill Blue’s interest in Walls-R-Us, LLC. 

 

Bill Blue realized he did not have the technical ability to operate Walls-R-Us, LLC without 

Gail Green’s assistance.  Nor could Bill Blue successfully market Walls-R-Us, LLC’s 

wallpaper products without Gail Green or someone else with her expertise. Therefore, he 

felt pressured to sell his interest, and verbally accepted Gail Green's offer, although he 

would not have agreed to sell if someone with her expertise or abilities remained at the 

company.  

 

At the closing table during the sale of Bill Blue’s interest in Walls-R-Us, LLC to Gail Green, 

but before the closing documents were signed, Bill Blue became angry and told Gail 

Green that he would not go forward with the closing unless Gail Green represented, in 

writing, that no third party was providing the funds to pay Bill Blue. Gail Green refused to 

do so, claiming that Bill Blue was bound by the terms of the buy-sell agreement. Gail 

Green also responded that she had no obligation to disclose the source of the funds and 

that Bill Blue was bound by contract to transfer his interest to her unconditionally.  Bill 

Blue refused to sell, threw Gail Green out of his office, and successfully hired someone 

to replace her. However, business is off by 25% related to Gail Green’s long time work 

on behalf of the company. Although Bill Blue is optimistic that he can succeed with her 



replacement, it could take 3 to 5 years to get back to where they were in terms of sales 

volume.  

 

Bill Blue, exercising his powers as President, advised Gail Green that he considered her 

involvement in Walls-R-Us., LLC terminated due to her “deceitful” and “despicable” 

conduct, refusing to continue to authorized payments of salary, distributions and benefits.  

Gail Green was removed from all bank accounts before she could take any action to 

protect her interests. The banks deny any error as Bill Blue was authorized based upon 

his corporate status to undertake these changes to the accounts.  

 

Bill Blue subsequently learned through Rob Red’s former wife, that Rob Red had indeed 

provided the purchase price to Gail Green, and, then intended to acquire the factory's 

assets, the real estate owned by a corporation owned by Walls-R-Us, LLC, on which the 

factory was located and to hire Gail to run Walls-R-Us, LLC.   

 

Bill Blue sued Rob Red in federal court claiming that Rob Red violated state and federal 

securities laws as well as state common law by denying involvement in the transaction. 

Rob Red has now threatened to bring Gail Green into the lawsuit. Gail Green’s counsel, 

who negotiated the asset purchase agreement, had not obtained an indemnification and 

hold harmless from Rob Red related to this transaction. Gail Green is also concerned 

about rumblings from Bill Blue that he intends to sue her and “make sure she never has 

gainful employment again.” Rob Red had signed a $200,000 per year 3-year employment 

contract with Gail Green to run the company, but now refuses to honor the agreement.  

 

You have been hired by Gail Green to evaluate whether she has any claims against Bill 

Blue, how she might pursue those claims, any defenses Bill Blue may have, as well as 

claims against her by Bill Blue. You have also been asked to evaluate any evidentiary 

considerations, the probability of prevailing, and any risks in the event she should not 

prevail, on any claim that might be brought, against any other person or entity, the risk of 

loss, and the ramifications of a loss. You have been asked to formulate your opinions and 

legal conclusions in a memorandum so that Gail Green can review your findings with her 



parents, and decide how to proceed, based upon your recommendations. An excellent 

answer will include an evaluation of claims that might be brought and your evaluation of 

whether they are viable or should be rejected. You may, but are not required to, use an 

outline format including your analysis and evaluation following each point.  

Sample Business Litigation Skills Essay Answer 

Overview.  

First, it is clear that Bill Blue should lose the case against Z. Z may be entitled to fees since the 
case by X against Z would have no merit. X’s claims against Z could be found to be frivolous. Y  
should prevail in any litigation brought by X. Y's alleged misrepresentation about Z's involvement 
in the buy-out did not cause X any damages, or caused him to refuse to sell his interest in ABC, 
LLC. Rather, X  refused to sell because he decided it was in X's economic self-interest to do so. 
X needed Y's skills; yet froze Y out of the business Although X therefore had no economically 
viable option but to sell, with an enforceable contract requiring X to do so, he decided to freeze Y 
out of the company. Y has many litigation options. Once concern might be enforcement of the 
non-competition agreement, against Y on the basis of Z’s activities, but that argument seems to 
be somewhat convoluted, although it is difficult to say how a court might react to such an argument 
if creatively plead.  

X might sue Y for fraud alleging that upon the offer to purchase X’s ownership interest, Y denied 
that Z was involved in the transaction.  But no damages flow from this claim.  X might also sue Y 
claiming that Y breached fiduciary duties to X., possibly under the operating agreement and 
Florida law.  A court could conclude that  X “ knew or should have known" at the time he agreed 
to sell his interest in ABC, LLC,  that X  was "involved, and was intending to finance Y’s purchase 
of X’s interest. Thus this claim against Y would not be meritorious.  

Y may have a claims against the Banks for changing the bank accounts. 

Y may also have a claim against her attorney for neglecting to include a defense and 
indemnification agreement in her agreement with Z., presuming Z would have agreed, which 
seems reasonable to presume based upon the facts presented.  

Y Claims Against X 

Dismissal pending federal suit? 

Breach of Buy-Sell Agreement.  

Breach of contract to convey ownership interest in ABC, LLC. Little risk of statute of frauds 
argument as the parties appeared at the closing. Damages based upon sale price. Damages 
based upon reduced value of company.  

Because of freeze out Y can sue for various violations of the Amended Limited Liability Company 
Act.  



X’s Defenses to Y’s Claims 

Fraud bar to claims. 

X Claims Against Y 

Breach of fiduciary duty. 

Breach of Florida Amended Limited Liability Company Act 

Y may have a fiduciary duty under the Amended Limited Liability Company Act and common law 
to disclose her negotiations with Z. However, such duties may be trumped by an enforceable 
operating agreement. Here the operating agreement contained no provision preventing Y from 
obtaining Z's assistance in funding the buyout under the buy-sell provision. The confidentiality 
agreement does not prevent this type of activity. Indeed, this provision gave Y wide latitude to 
engage in business activities except those "similar to the business of" ABC, LLC. that is, a 
"competing" wallpaper company. The provision was broad enough to allow the Y to negotiate with 
Z for the purpose of obtaining financing to fund her buy-out of X's interest in ABC, LLC. This 
activity did not "compete" with ABC, LLC; thus, it did not fall within the exception. Any fiduciary 
duty of disclosure that Y may have owed X with respect to such a business arrangement was 
eliminated by the terms of an operating agreement that allowed the business activity which 
occurred. Of course, the argument can be advanced by X that the omission did not change the 
common law fiduciary duties owed by X to Y. Even so, it would be unlikely that X can establish 
any damages flowing from this alleged breach, as a matter of law.  
 
Also, because the Y's proposed buy-out of X's interest would not create a situation where a third 
party was buying into ABC, LLC and become X's business partner, a clear purpose (to prevent 
outsiders) of the right of first refusal was not implicated. Therefore, neither a fiduciary duty or the 
operating agreement would require Y to disclose to X how she intended to finance her buy-out 
offer. Of course, this argument is belied by the fact that X would not have been placed in this 
“predicament” had Y not relied upon third party financing. Thus X might argue he is being forced 
into a buy out that implicates the implied duty of good faith and fair dealing, which seems to be 
violated by the manner in which Y proceeded.  Thus X’s best argument may well be that he was 
forced to cancel the sale and terminate Y’s employment because of these clandestine activities.  

Securities Law violation claim against Y (See claims against Z below). 

Y’s Defenses to X’s Claims 

See Below 

X Suit Against Z 

X sues Z in federal court.   

Derivative claims on behalf of ABC, LLC? It is not a seller of a security but has standing on the 
common law claims. (Does X qualify as a seller of a security?) 



X may claim Z violated § 10(b) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the "1934 Act") and Rule 
10b-5(b) promulgated thereunder. Second, X may claim that Z directly or indirectly controlled the 
activities of Y using the confidentiality and no discussions with others provisions as well as the 
secret discussions with Y (that must have occurred) and the Asset Purchase Agreement. As such, 
X may claim that Z was responsible for the Y’s conduct in violation of § 10(b) and Rule 10b-5(b) 
as a "controlling person" under § 20(a) of the 1934 Act.  Specifically, X will claim that Z was 
responsible for Y’s denial of Z’s involvement. Third, X may claim that Y engaged in a scheme, 
device, and artifice to defraud in violation of § 10(b) and Rule 10b-5(a). 

X can identify the "scheme" as X’s and Y’s agreement not to disclose their negotiation; use of the 
buy-sell provision "to improperly exclude X from participating in the sale of ABC, LLC; and   
collaboration to deceive the X into forcing X to sell his interest to Y under circumstances that were 
not ordinary course. X can claim that misrepresentations, omissions, and scheme caused X to 
agree to sell his interests and suffer injury, due to forcing Y out of the business to protect his 
interest in ABC, LLC.   

X can also sue under Chapter 517, Florida Statutes for violation of the Florida Securities and 
Investor Protection Act, alleging that the same conduct that gave rise to the  federal claims for 
relief rendered Z liable to X under the Florida securities laws. X may also sue Z (and Y) conspiracy 
to defraud, alleging that Z conspired with the Y to fraudulently X to sell his interest in ABC, LLC. 
X may also consider a claim for aiding and abetting breach of fiduciary duties, alleging that Y, 
aided and abetted by Z, breached the fiduciary duty to X to inform him that Z was supporting the 
enforcement of the buy-sell agreement.  X may also consider a claim for tortious interference with 
business relations," alleging that Z tortiously interfered with the Y’s business relations with X.  

Z may seek a stay of the federal court case in the event Y sues X in state court, arguing that such 
litigation could settle through issue preclusion some of the factual issues involved in X’s federal 
court claims.  

Sanctions by Z against X? 

Z may argue that should sanction X and his attorneys under the PSLRA for filing and prosecuting 
the federal securities law claims.  The PSLRA requires the district court, upon final adjudication 
of the action, to make specific findings regarding compliance by each party and each attorney ... 
with each requirement of Rule 11(b) of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure as to any complaint, 
responsive pleading, or dispositive motion."]15 U.S.C. § 78u-4(c)(1). The district court makes 
these findings as it normally would do under Rule 11. See Citibank Global Mkts., Inc. v. Rodriguez 
Santana, 573 F.3d 17, 32 (1st Cir.2009) ("[T]he PSLRA ... does not alter the standards used to 
judge compliance with Rule 11."); Simon DeBartolo Group, L.P. v. Richard E. Jacobs Group, Inc., 
186 F.3d 157, 167 (2d Cir.1999) ("The PSLRA thus does not in any way purport to alter the 
substantive standards for finding a violation of Rule 11....").  

The PSLRA requires the district court to determine whether X's attorneys violated Rule 11(b) by 
certifying, "after an inquiry reasonable under the circumstances," that the federal securities law 
claims were "not being presented for any improper purpose," Fed.R.Civ.P. 11(b)(1), were 
"warranted by existing law or by a non-frivolous argument for [a change in the] law," Fed.R.Civ.P. 
11(b)(2), and "h[ad] evidentiary support," Fed.R.Civ.P. 11(b)(3).  

In the case at hand, the district court may find no merit in any of X’s claims. However, even if the 
court found the claims lack merit, the court might decline to impose sanctions because the court 

http://scholar.google.com/scholar_case?case=14256481434974758048&q=ledford+peeples&hl=en&as_sdt=4,121,253,254,255,262,263,264,265,266,267,316,317,318,325,326,327,328,329,330
http://scholar.google.com/scholar_case?case=14256481434974758048&q=ledford+peeples&hl=en&as_sdt=4,121,253,254,255,262,263,264,265,266,267,316,317,318,325,326,327,328,329,330
http://scholar.google.com/scholar_case?case=14937283330590817307&q=ledford+peeples&hl=en&as_sdt=4,121,253,254,255,262,263,264,265,266,267,316,317,318,325,326,327,328,329,330
http://scholar.google.com/scholar_case?case=14937283330590817307&q=ledford+peeples&hl=en&as_sdt=4,121,253,254,255,262,263,264,265,266,267,316,317,318,325,326,327,328,329,330


might conclude that the position taken by X and his was not unreasonable or in bad faith. X could 
argue that evidence in the record permitted X and his counsel to present reasonable, good faith 
arguments that X acted as he did based on Z’s (and Y’s) conduct, and that X consequently had 
satisfied the causation and reliance elements of his securities law claims. The Court therefore 
should not determine that X and his  counsel lacked a reasonable basis in fact for filing this action, 
or that X and his counsel knew or should have known that he lacked a reasonable basis in fact. 
Also the court may find that the claims on the merits were warranted by existing law or by a non-
frivolous argument for the extension, modification, or reversal of existing law or the establishment 
of new law.  

The district court denied the first claim based on  

Claims Against Banks? 

Should the banks have changed the bank accounts?  

Claims Against Y’s Counsel? 

Is it malpractice to neglect to include a defense and indemnification agreement in Y’s favor in the 
asset purchase agreement with Z?  
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	1. Lawyer represents a plaintiff in a case against a corporate defendant.  The  attorney for the corporate defendant claims that Lawyer may not contact current  employees of the corporate defendant to discuss the case without his prior  consent.  Attorney for the corporate defendant is: 
	 
	 (a)  Incorrect and Lawyer may contact current employees who do not  supervise, direct or regularly consult with the organization’s lawyer  concerning the litigation, have authority to obligate the organization with  respect to the matter and whose acts or omissions in connection with the matter may not be imputed to the organization for purposes of civil or   criminal liability.  
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	 (a) Answer or present other defenses or objections within 30 days of  December 1. 
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	3. Peter Fenno, the first floor tenant under a commercial lease brought an action against Donna Solomon, the occupant of the second floor of the building to recover for damage to Peter’s property by fire allegedly caused by negligent use of an acetylene torch by Donna’s employees.  At trial, instead of offering into evidence voluminous business records showing the amount of damages suffered, Peter introduced into evidence a summary showing tabulations of damaged goods for the purpose of establishing damages
	 
	(a) Sustain the objection because under the “Best Evidence Rule,” the original  documents showing the damages sustained by Peter must be introduced  into evidence. 
	 
	(b) Sustain the objection because Peter did not give timely written notice of    his intention to use the summary and file proof of the notice with the court. 
	 
	(c) Overrule the objection because when it is not convenient to examine in  court the contents of voluminous writings, recordings, or photographs, a  party may present them in the form of a chart, summary or calculation. 
	 
	(d) Sustain the objection because without the raw data on which the     tabulations are based the tabulations are inadmissible hearsay.  
	 
	Answer:  (b) 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	4. Orange County Builders, Inc. (“OCB”) defaulted on a loan from National Bank, and workout negotiations failed.  Mike Freed, the sole stockholder of OCB, individually sued National Bank on various causes of action, including breach of fiduciary duty, fraud and negligent misrepresentation in conjunction with the failed workout negotiations.  National Bank defended on the grounds that the original loan agreement between OCB and National Bank expressly precluded the claims being asserted by Mr. Freed and that
	At trial, National Bank attempts to impeach Mr. Freed with letters that he had written in an effort to show that Mr. Freed represented himself to National Bank as the representative of OCB; described himself in the letters as “me, the borrower,” and indicated a willingness to “turn over the keys” to OCB if a workout negotiation agreement was not reached.  Mr. Freed’s attorney, Gregg Weiss, has objected to introduction of the letters on the grounds that they were settlement communications and contain hearsay
	 
	(a) Sustain the objection as inadmissible hearsay. 
	 
	(b) Sustain the objection as statements made as part of settlement  negotiations. 
	(c) Overrule the objection because the letters are not offered on the issues of  liability or the absence of liability or the value of the claim, but rather to  prove Mr. Freed was acting in his capacity on behalf of OCB. 
	(d) Overrule the objection because it is a claim involving fraud or  negligent misrepresentation. 
	Answer:  (c) 
	 
	 
	5. The Huey-Long-Bowden Corporation (“HLB”) sued XYZ, LLC for tortious interference with a business relationship to recover damages allegedly suffered as a result of XYZ’s filing a lawsuit that disrupted HLB’s efforts to purchase 27 acres of unimproved land in Bumbleweed, Florida.  During the course of litigation filed by HLB, HLB’s president (John DeFame) testified at his deposition that XYZ is a deadbeat and never pays its bills and owes ABC $75,000.  In the HLB v. XYZ litigation, XYZ moved for judgment o
	 
	  (a) Deny the motion because the immunity afforded by the litigation privilege     does not apply to intentional torts. 
	 
	  (b) Deny the motion because there are genuine issues of material fact as to the   nature of the allegedly defamatory statements and the actions of XYZ that    allegedly constituted the interference. 
	 
	(c)  Grant the motion because absolute immunity must be afforded to any act occurring during the course of a judicial proceeding, regardless of whether the act involves a defamatory statement, so long as the alleged misconduct has some relation to the proceeding. 
	 
	(d)  Grant the motion because HLB really is a deadbeat who never pays its bills. 
	 
	 
	Answer: (c) 
	 
	6. Which of the following factors is not to be considered by the Court in determining whether the use of a copyrighted work is a "fair use" under federal law? 
	 
	 (a) The nature of the copyrighted work. 
	 
	 (b) Whether the copyrighted work is the creation of a public figure. 
	 
	(c) The amount and substantiality of the portion used in relation to the copyrighted work as a whole. 
	 
	(d) The effect of the use upon the potential market for or the value of the copyrighted work. 
	 
	Answer:  (b) 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	7. A person admitted as a partner to an existing general partnership: 
	 
	(a) Is personally liable for partnership obligations regardless whether they were incurred before the person's admission. 
	(a) Is personally liable for partnership obligations regardless whether they were incurred before the person's admission. 
	(a) Is personally liable for partnership obligations regardless whether they were incurred before the person's admission. 


	 
	(b) Is personally liable for that percentage of partnership obligations incurred before the person's admission which equates with her percentage capital contribution to the partnership.  
	(b) Is personally liable for that percentage of partnership obligations incurred before the person's admission which equates with her percentage capital contribution to the partnership.  
	(b) Is personally liable for that percentage of partnership obligations incurred before the person's admission which equates with her percentage capital contribution to the partnership.  


	 
	(c) Is not personally liable for any partnership obligations incurred before the person's admission. 
	(c) Is not personally liable for any partnership obligations incurred before the person's admission. 
	(c) Is not personally liable for any partnership obligations incurred before the person's admission. 


	 
	(d) Is not personally liable for any partnership obligations incurred before the person's admission unless it can be shown that she was aware of the obligations at the time that they were incurred. 
	(d) Is not personally liable for any partnership obligations incurred before the person's admission unless it can be shown that she was aware of the obligations at the time that they were incurred. 
	(d) Is not personally liable for any partnership obligations incurred before the person's admission unless it can be shown that she was aware of the obligations at the time that they were incurred. 


	 
	Answer: (c) 
	 
	 
	8. Bill Lauper is a minority shareholder in Steinfeld Hotels Corporation (''the Corporation'').  Darren is the president, sole director, chief executive and majority shareholder of the Corporation.  The Corporation is the sole general partner of Fancy Hotels, Ltd., a Florida limited partnership.  Bill owns 25% of the shares of the Corporation.  Darren owns 70%, and a third shareholder owns 5%.  The three shareholders executed a shareholder agreement.  All three shareholders work full time for the Corporatio
	  
	 (a)   Dismiss the case because the existence or performance of a shareholder  agreement cannot be a ground for imposing personal liability on any  shareholder for the acts of the corporation. 
	 
	 (b)  Deny the motion to dismiss because a shareholder may sue another  shareholder for breach of the shareholder's agreement. 
	 
	(c) Dismiss the case because as the majority shareholder, Darren could take any acts on behalf of the Corporation that he deemed reasonably prudent. 
	 
	(d)    Deny the motion to dismiss because of the economic loss rule. 
	  
	Answer: (b) 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	9. On April 5, 2015, Hank Jackson rented equipment under a four-year lease.  On January 8, 2016, he was petitioned involuntarily into bankruptcy under Chapter 11 of the  Bankruptcy Code.  Jeremy Slusher is appointed as trustee.  The fair market value for the  equipment slightly exceeds the balance of the lease payments due.  The trustee: 
	(a) May not reject the equipment lease because the fair market value of the equipment exceeds the balance of the lease payments due. 
	(b) Must assume the equipment lease because its term exceeds one year. 
	 
	(c) May elect not to assume the equipment lease. 
	 
	(d) Must assume and subsequently assign the equipment. 
	 
	Answer: (c) 
	 
	10. Discount Finance Corporation purchased retail installment contracts from Sharp Deals, a Florida motor vehicle dealer. The retail paper purchased from Sharp Deals grants a purchase money security interest in the motor vehicles to the dealer. All of the retail installment contracts with the consumer-purchasers provide that they will be assigned to Discount, as the assignee. The motor vehicle certificates of title are noted with the lien in favor of Discount.  The retail installment contracts further provi
	 
	 With respect to any dispute arising between Discount, as assignee of the retail installment contracts, and a consumer-purchaser of a motor vehicle from Sharp Deals, which of the following statements are true? 
	 
	(a) Under certain circumstances, the purchaser may assert any defenses against the assignee that the purchaser may have had against Sharp Deals, despite the inclusion of the waiver of defense clause in the retail installment contract. 
	 
	(b) Under no circumstances may the purchaser assert any defense against the assignee that the purchaser may have had against Sharp Deals, because of the waiver of defense clause included in the retail installment contract. 
	 
	(c) Under no circumstances may the purchaser assert any defenses against the assignee that the purchaser may have had against Sharp Deals, provided the assignee and Sharp Deals are “closely connected.” 
	 
	(d) None of the above. 
	 
	Answer; (a) 
	 
	 
	SAMPLE BUSINESS LITIGATION SKILLS ESSAY 
	 
	 
	Bill Blue and Gail Green each own a 50% percent interest in Walls-R-Us, LLC, that manufactures and sells wallpaper.  Both are Florida residents, in Blohard County.   Bill Blue provided the financing; Gail Green ran the company and marketed its product. A buy-sell agreement contained in the LLC operating agreement enabled either party to buy out the other at any time by offering to purchase the other's interest in the company at a set price. After receiving an offer, the offeree would have thirty days in whi
	 
	Gail Green offered to purchase Bill Blue's interest for $7 million. Bill Blue demanded to know whether Gail Green would be borrowing the funds from a third party, one Rob Red, whom Bill Blue knew had earlier approached Walls-R-Us, LLC, and expressed an interest in purchasing the company. Rob Red lives in New Mexico, but owns a condominium in Ft. Meyers which he visits occasionally. Bill Blue has held a longstanding belief that Rob Red is an unscrupulous businessman, and has personal animosity towards him fo
	long ago when they coincidentally attended the same university. Also coincidentally, these events involved Gail Green’s sorority sister, to whom Rob Red had been married for a short time after college. Gail Green believes that Bill Blue harbors lingering jealousies towards Rob Red, and does not want him involved in anything to do with Bill Blue’s business affairs.   
	 
	In fact, however, Gail Green and Rob Red had entered into an asset purchase agreement to acquire Walls-R-Us, LLC from Bill Blue that included confidentiality and no discussions with others provisions specifically designed to prevent Gail Green from disclosing her true intentions to Bill Blue.  Gail Green told Bill Blue that Rob Red was not providing the funding for the purchase, nor was anyone else providing the money. Bill Blue also confronted Rob Red who represented he had no involvement in Gail Green’s o
	 
	Bill Blue realized he did not have the technical ability to operate Walls-R-Us, LLC without Gail Green’s assistance.  Nor could Bill Blue successfully market Walls-R-Us, LLC’s wallpaper products without Gail Green or someone else with her expertise. Therefore, he felt pressured to sell his interest, and verbally accepted Gail Green's offer, although he would not have agreed to sell if someone with her expertise or abilities remained at the company.  
	 
	At the closing table during the sale of Bill Blue’s interest in Walls-R-Us, LLC to Gail Green, but before the closing documents were signed, Bill Blue became angry and told Gail Green that he would not go forward with the closing unless Gail Green represented, in writing, that no third party was providing the funds to pay Bill Blue. Gail Green refused to do so, claiming that Bill Blue was bound by the terms of the buy-sell agreement. Gail Green also responded that she had no obligation to disclose the sourc
	replacement, it could take 3 to 5 years to get back to where they were in terms of sales volume.  
	 
	Bill Blue, exercising his powers as President, advised Gail Green that he considered her involvement in Walls-R-Us., LLC terminated due to her “deceitful” and “despicable” conduct, refusing to continue to authorized payments of salary, distributions and benefits.  Gail Green was removed from all bank accounts before she could take any action to protect her interests. The banks deny any error as Bill Blue was authorized based upon his corporate status to undertake these changes to the accounts.  
	 
	Bill Blue subsequently learned through Rob Red’s former wife, that Rob Red had indeed provided the purchase price to Gail Green, and, then intended to acquire the factory's assets, the real estate owned by a corporation owned by Walls-R-Us, LLC, on which the factory was located and to hire Gail to run Walls-R-Us, LLC.   
	 
	Bill Blue sued Rob Red in federal court claiming that Rob Red violated state and federal securities laws as well as state common law by denying involvement in the transaction. Rob Red has now threatened to bring Gail Green into the lawsuit. Gail Green’s counsel, who negotiated the asset purchase agreement, had not obtained an indemnification and hold harmless from Rob Red related to this transaction. Gail Green is also concerned about rumblings from Bill Blue that he intends to sue her and “make sure she ne
	 
	You have been hired by Gail Green to evaluate whether she has any claims against Bill Blue, how she might pursue those claims, any defenses Bill Blue may have, as well as claims against her by Bill Blue. You have also been asked to evaluate any evidentiary considerations, the probability of prevailing, and any risks in the event she should not prevail, on any claim that might be brought, against any other person or entity, the risk of loss, and the ramifications of a loss. You have been asked to formulate y
	parents, and decide how to proceed, based upon your recommendations. An excellent answer will include an evaluation of claims that might be brought and your evaluation of whether they are viable or should be rejected. You may, but are not required to, use an outline format including your analysis and evaluation following each point.  
	Sample Business Litigation Skills Essay Answer 
	Overview.  
	First, it is clear that Bill Blue should lose the case against Z. Z may be entitled to fees since the case by X against Z would have no merit. X’s claims against Z could be found to be frivolous. Y  should prevail in any litigation brought by X. Y's alleged misrepresentation about Z's involvement in the buy-out did not cause X any damages, or caused him to refuse to sell his interest in ABC, LLC. Rather, X  refused to sell because he decided it was in X's economic self-interest to do so. X needed Y's skills
	X might sue Y for fraud alleging that upon the offer to purchase X’s ownership interest, Y denied that Z was involved in the transaction.  But no damages flow from this claim.  X might also sue Y claiming that Y breached fiduciary duties to X., possibly under the operating agreement and Florida law.  A court could conclude that  X “ knew or should have known" at the time he agreed to sell his interest in ABC, LLC,  that X  was "involved, and was intending to finance Y’s purchase of X’s interest. Thus this c
	Y may have a claims against the Banks for changing the bank accounts. 
	Y may also have a claim against her attorney for neglecting to include a defense and indemnification agreement in her agreement with Z., presuming Z would have agreed, which seems reasonable to presume based upon the facts presented.  
	Y Claims Against X 
	Dismissal pending federal suit? 
	Breach of Buy-Sell Agreement.  
	Breach of contract to convey ownership interest in ABC, LLC. Little risk of statute of frauds argument as the parties appeared at the closing. Damages based upon sale price. Damages based upon reduced value of company.  
	Because of freeze out Y can sue for various violations of the Amended Limited Liability Company Act.  
	X’s Defenses to Y’s Claims 
	Fraud bar to claims. 
	X Claims Against Y 
	Breach of fiduciary duty. 
	Breach of Florida Amended Limited Liability Company Act 
	Y may have a fiduciary duty under the Amended Limited Liability Company Act and common law to disclose her negotiations with Z. However, such duties may be trumped by an enforceable operating agreement. Here the operating agreement contained no provision preventing Y from obtaining Z's assistance in funding the buyout under the buy-sell provision. The confidentiality agreement does not prevent this type of activity. Indeed, this provision gave Y wide latitude to engage in business activities except those "s
	 
	Also, because the Y's proposed buy-out of X's interest would not create a situation where a third party was buying into ABC, LLC and become X's business partner, a clear purpose (to prevent outsiders) of the right of first refusal was not implicated. Therefore, neither a fiduciary duty or the operating agreement would require Y to disclose to X how she intended to finance her buy-out offer. Of course, this argument is belied by the fact that X would not have been placed in this “predicament” had Y not relie
	Securities Law violation claim against Y (See claims against Z below). 
	Y’s Defenses to X’s Claims 
	See Below 
	X Suit Against Z 
	X sues Z in federal court.   
	Derivative claims on behalf of ABC, LLC? It is not a seller of a security but has standing on the common law claims. (Does X qualify as a seller of a security?) 
	X may claim Z violated § 10(b) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the "1934 Act") and Rule 10b-5(b) promulgated thereunder. Second, X may claim that Z directly or indirectly controlled the activities of Y using the confidentiality and no discussions with others provisions as well as the secret discussions with Y (that must have occurred) and the Asset Purchase Agreement. As such, X may claim that Z was responsible for the Y’s conduct in violation of § 10(b) and Rule 10b-5(b) as a "controlling person" u
	X can identify the "scheme" as X’s and Y’s agreement not to disclose their negotiation; use of the buy-sell provision "to improperly exclude X from participating in the sale of ABC, LLC; and   collaboration to deceive the X into forcing X to sell his interest to Y under circumstances that were not ordinary course. X can claim that misrepresentations, omissions, and scheme caused X to agree to sell his interests and suffer injury, due to forcing Y out of the business to protect his interest in ABC, LLC.   
	X can also sue under Chapter 517, Florida Statutes for violation of the Florida Securities and Investor Protection Act, alleging that the same conduct that gave rise to the  federal claims for relief rendered Z liable to X under the Florida securities laws. X may also sue Z (and Y) conspiracy to defraud, alleging that Z conspired with the Y to fraudulently X to sell his interest in ABC, LLC. X may also consider a claim for aiding and abetting breach of fiduciary duties, alleging that Y, aided and abetted by
	Z may seek a stay of the federal court case in the event Y sues X in state court, arguing that such litigation could settle through issue preclusion some of the factual issues involved in X’s federal court claims.  
	Sanctions by Z against X? 
	P
	Span
	Z
	 
	may argue that
	 
	should 
	sanction X
	 
	and his attorneys under the PSLRA for filing and prosecuting 
	the federal securities law claims.  The PSLRA requires the district court, upon final adjudication 
	of the act
	ion, to make specific findings regarding compliance by each party and each attorney ... 
	with each requirement of Rule 11(b) of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure as to any complaint, 
	responsive pleading, or dispositive motion."
	]
	15 U.S.C. § 78u
	-
	4(c)(1). 
	T
	he district court makes 
	these findings as it normally would do under Rule 11. 
	See 
	Citibank Global Mkts., Inc. v. Rodriguez Santana, 573 F.3d 17, 32 (1st Cir.2009)
	Citibank Global Mkts., Inc. v. Rodriguez Santana, 573 F.3d 17, 32 (1st Cir.2009)

	 ("[T]he PSLRA ... does not alter the standards used to judge compliance with Rule 11."); 
	Simon DeBartolo Group, L.P. v. Richard E. Jacobs Group, Inc., 186 F.3d 157, 167 (2d Cir.1999)
	Simon DeBartolo Group, L.P. v. Richard E. Jacobs Group, Inc., 186 F.3d 157, 167 (2d Cir.1999)

	 ("The PSLRA thus does not in any way purport to alter the substantive standards for finding a violation of Rule 11....").  

	The PSLRA requires the district court to determine whether X's attorneys violated Rule 11(b) by certifying, "after an inquiry reasonable under the circumstances," that the federal securities law claims were "not being presented for any improper purpose," Fed.R.Civ.P. 11(b)(1), were "warranted by existing law or by a non-frivolous argument for [a change in the] law," Fed.R.Civ.P. 11(b)(2), and "h[ad] evidentiary support," Fed.R.Civ.P. 11(b)(3).  
	In the case at hand, the district court may find no merit in any of X’s claims. However, even if the court found the claims lack merit, the court might decline to impose sanctions because the court 
	might conclude that the position taken by X and his was not unreasonable or in bad faith. X could argue that evidence in the record permitted X and his counsel to present reasonable, good faith arguments that X acted as he did based on Z’s (and Y’s) conduct, and that X consequently had satisfied the causation and reliance elements of his securities law claims. The Court therefore should not determine that X and his  counsel lacked a reasonable basis in fact for filing this action, or that X and his counsel 
	The district court denied the first claim based on  
	Claims Against Banks? 
	Should the banks have changed the bank accounts?  
	Claims Against Y’s Counsel? 
	Is it malpractice to neglect to include a defense and indemnification agreement in Y’s favor in the asset purchase agreement with Z?  
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